
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 
Regular Meeting June 15, 2020 
North Pole Council Chambers 

125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska 
www.northpolealaska.com 

 
 
 

Monday, June 15 2020 
Committee of the Whole: 6:30 p.m. 

Regular City Council Meeting: 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 
Michael Welch 
488-8584 

 
488-8583 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Perry Walley – Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 

347-0135 
Santa Claus – Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 388-3836 
Aino Welch – Alt. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 488-5834 
DeJohn Cromer 347-2808 
David Skipps 750-5106 
Thomas McGhee 455-0010 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag  

3. Invocation  

4. Approval of the Agenda  

5. Approval of the Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

a. June 1, 2020 
 

6. Communications from the Mayor 
 

7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor 
 

8. Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk 

9. Ongoing Projects Report 

10. Citizens Comments (Limited to five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

 

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


11. Old Business: 
a. Reconsideration: Request to Approve the Borough Ambulance Contract 

 
12. New Business: 

a. Ordinance 20-13, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 2, 
Administration and Personnel, Section 2.36.400 Holidays. 

b. Resolution 20-06, A Resolution of the North Pole City Council Authorizing The City of North 
Pole To Accept Coronavirus Relief Funds From The State of Alaska. 

c. Request to Approve use of a Request for Proposal approach to solicit construction 
contractor for the Old Water Treatment Plant Remodel Project. 
 

13. Executive Session to Discuss Personnel Matters Regarding City Clerk 
 

14. Council Comments 
 

15. Adjournment 
 
Detailed information and copies of agenda documents may be obtained at the Office of the City Clerk, 
125 Snowman Lane or on the City website www.northpolealaska.com .  Notice of Council Action is 
available at City Hall and on the City website following the meeting. 
 

How to Offer Public Testimony at Council Meetings 
 

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic and local/state regulations requiring residents to stay at home, 
practice social distancing, and limit gatherings, the City of North Pole has created a process for citizens 
to stay connected with the Council regarding agenda items. 
 
Written testimony is encouraged.  You may submit your comments by calling the Clerk’s Office at 
488-8583 or by sending an email to kkiehl@northpolealaska.org prior to 1:00 p.m. the day of the 
meeting.  Please indicate which agenda item you are providing written testimony for.  Examples: 
Ordinance or Resolution number, agenda item#, or description of subject. 
 
To sign-up for telephonic testimony call the Clerk’s Office at 488-8583 or 
email kkiehl@northpolealaska.org prior to 1:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Please indicate that you 
wished to be called, for what item you will provide testimony on, and what number you can be reached 
at. 
 
Council Meetings are aired live via audio streaming from the City’s website 
at https://www.northpolealaska.com/citycouncil/page/council-meeting-audio-stream. 
 
Inquiries concerning ADA compliance or accommodations should be directed to the City Clerk. 

http://www.northpolealaska.com/
mailto:kkiehl@northpolealaska.org
mailto:kkiehl@northpolealaska.org
https://www.northpolealaska.com/citycouncil/page/council-meeting-audio-stream


 

1 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 18, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, JUNE 1, 2020 

NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
125 SNOWMAN LANE, NORTH POLE, ALASKA 

 
 
Mayor Welch called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, June 1, 2020 to order at 7:00 
p.m. with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Santa Claus 
    Thomas McGhee 
    David Skipps 

Aino Welch 
Mayor Welch 
Perry Walley 

 
Absent:   DeJohn Cromer 
 
Excused: 
       
Also Present:   Tricia Fogarty, Chief Financial Officer  

Steve Dutra, Police Chief 
Kim Kiehl, City Clerk/HR Manager 
Geoff Coon, Fire Chief 
Chad Heineken, Deputy Fire Chief 
Kurt Lockwood, Detective 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
Mayor Welch asked everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

INVOCATION 
The Invocation was given by City Council Member Mr. Walley. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Mr. McGhee moved to approve the agenda of June 1, 2020. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Walley. 
 

Discussion 
Mr. Walley moved to consent the following items:  
 

Old Business: 
a. Ordinance 20-12, An Ordinance of the North Pole City Council to Establish the Rate of 

Tax Levy of 2020 Real Property of the City of North Pole. 



 

2 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 18, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

 
 
New Business: 

a. Request to Approve the ALMR FY21 Membership Agreement for the City of North Pole. 
c. Request to Approve the Fire Mutual Aid Agreement. 
d. Request to Approve the Forestry Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement. 
f. Resolution 20-05, A Resolution of the North Pole City Council Designating City 

Officials Authorization to Sign on City of North Pole Accounts. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps. 
 

Discussion 
Remove New Business Agenda Item “e.” Ordinance 20-13, An Ordinance of the City of North 
Pole, Alaska Amending Title 2, Administration and Personnel, Section 2.36.400 Holidays. 
 

On the amendment. 
 

PASSED 
YES: 6 – Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Claus, Mrs. Welch, Mr. Walley, Mayor Welch 
NO: 0   
ABSTAIN:  
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED 
 

On the Agenda as amended. 
 

Discussion 
None  
 

PASSED 
YES: 6 – Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Claus, Mrs. Welch, Mr. Walley, Mayor Welch 
NO: 0   
ABSTAIN:  
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Mrs. Welch moved to approve the Minutes of May 18, 2020 
 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps. 
 
Discussion 
None 

 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF 
MAY 18, 2020 AS FOLLOWS: 
 



 

3 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 18, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

YES: 6 – Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Claus, Mrs. Welch, Mr. Walley, Mayor 
Welch   
NO: 0   

    ABSTAIN:   
   Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED  
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR  
 

a. Eielson Air Force Base Economic Impact Statement. 
b. Explore Fairbanks request for CARES Act funds. 
c. Meeting with FNSB Mayor Ward regarding CARES Act. 

a. Common Contract Service Provider without abrogating our rights as a political 
subdivision. 

b. FNSB Assembly meeting June 11th. 
c. Mr. Claus discussed liability matters. 
d. Mr. McGhee indicated he will have questions at the June 15th Council meeting regarding 

how much participation we might anticipate from businesses and residents under our 
utilities within the City. 

e. Request for Board members to be on a committee. 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR    
a. Mr. McGhee requested the Mayor pay Madam CFO for the reimbursement he was 

provided for a computer he purchased on his personal card and then returned. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 
 

Police Department, Chief Dutra   
• Department is doing well – below budget projections. 
• Hired one officer, will start June 10th.  Second officer should start in a couple days. 
• RFP – ITF has been awarded and Notice to Proceed has been given. 
• Long has started wiring installation for camera systems in City Hall and NPPD. 
• Stats ending May 31st. 

o Total Calls – 366 
• RFP for range is complete and initial site locating has begun.  DOWL from 

Anchorage has won the bid. 
• June 6th from 10-1 we will be working on dirt and grass at NP Memorial Park.  Please 

join us with a shovel and rake if you would like to help.  Please RSVP if you plan on 
helping. 

• Replaced water heater since the on-demand system went down again. 
• Skateboard park – working to see about a camera set-up to help keep lid on things. 

 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty  
• Uploaded Sales Tax for April, YTD this year over last up $79,000.00. 
• Onboarding call with Clear.Gov 

o Set up timeline, up and running by mid to late July. 



 

4 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 18, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

• KSH here tomorrow for second time. 
o Looking at grant files and Moose Creek project. 
o Please answer email. 

• Sorry to see City Clerk to leave. 
 
Fire Department, Chief Coon  

• Fire danger is moderate and burning is allowed. 
• 557 emergency calls this year, average of 3.6 per day. 
• Alaska has had 467 COVID-19 cases with 368 total recovered, 10 deaths. 

o FNSB are has had 85 total cases (unchanged from last report). 
• Please continue to work on the ICS classes. 
• The Command truck is scheduled to be done in August. 
• NPFD is fully staffed at this time. 

o Request the Council to look at and revise the pay scale. 
• Training – One member completed their FF-2 testing and is awaiting results. 
• Maintenance Report – Half way done with testing over 200 fire hydrants. 

Mr. McGhee – Task Chief Coon and Chief Dutra to bring pay recommendations to next meeting. 

Borough Representative 
• Mrs. Welch – No Borough meeting attended since first meeting of the month. 
• Gave report for the Economic Development Commission meeting attended on May 19th. 

 

City Clerk  
• Open enrollment June 1-20, 2020. 

o Email to all staff May 27, 2020 providing information and required forms. 
o Changes go into effect July 1, 2020. 

• Mr. Claus – Reads letter addressed to Madam Clerk into the record. 
 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
• Mayor Welch discussed IGU regarding gas line. 

o IGU representative here for July 6th meeting. 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
• Steve Dutra, 125 Snowman Ln North Pole AK 99705 

o Thank you to City Clerk. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
b. Request to Approve the Borough Ambulance Contract. 

 
MOTION TO APPROVE REQUEST TO APPROVE THE BOROUGH AMBULANCE 
CONTRACT. 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Request to Approve the Borough Ambulance Contract. 



 

5 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 18, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

 

Seconded by Mrs. Welch. 
 
Discussion 

• Discussion was held regarding the request to approve the Borough ambulance contract. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE REQUEST TO 
APPROVE THE BOROUGH AMBULANCE CONTRACT. 

 

YES: 3 –Mrs. Welch, Mr. Walley, Mayor Welch 
NO: 3 – Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Claus  
ABSTAIN:  
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION FAILED. 

 
Council Comments 
Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Walley, Mr. Claus, and Mrs. Welch thanked the outgoing City 
Clerk. 
 

Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:17 p.m. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Walley. 
 

The regular meeting of Monday, June 1, 2020 adjourned at 8:17 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
              

Michael W. Welch, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
       
                                    , City Clerk 



1

Kim Kiehl

From: Santa Claus
Sent: Tuesday, June 02, 2020 10:44 AM
To: Kim Kiehl
Subject: RE: Request to Approve the Borough Ambulance Contract

Yes, Thank you. 
________________________________________ 
From: Kim Kiehl 
Sent: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 10:10 AM 
To: Santa Claus 
Subject: RE: Request to Approve the Borough Ambulance Contract 
 
Santa, 
 
To clarify, are you requesting this be brought back to the next council meeting for reconsideration?  Thank you. 
 
Best. 
 
Kim 
 
Kim Kiehl 
City Clerk/HR Manager 
City of North Pole 
125 Snowman Lane 
North Pole, AK  99705 
W (907)488‐8583 
F (907)488‐3002 
kkiehl@northpolealaska.org 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Santa Claus 
Sent: Tuesday, June 02, 2020 10:09 AM 
To: Kim Kiehl <KKiehl@northpolealaska.org> 
Subject: RE: Request to Approve the Borough Ambulance Contract 
 
Good morning, Kim: 
 
I hereby confirm my request that the Borough Ambulance Contract be approved. 
 
Thank you, Santa 
________________________________________ 
From: Kim Kiehl 
Sent: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 8:59 AM 
To: Santa Claus 
Subject: Request to Approve the Borough Ambulance Contract 
 
Good morning Santa, 
 



2

Can you please confirm your verbal request to me last night regarding the Request to Approve the Borough Ambulance 
Contract?  I should have your request in writing.  Thank you. 
 
Best. 
 
Kim 
 
Kim Kiehl 
City Clerk/HR Manager 
City of North Pole 
125 Snowman Lane 
North Pole, AK  99705 
W (907)488‐8583 
F (907)488‐3002 
kkiehl@northpolealaska.org<mailto:Tricia.Fogarty@northpolealaska.org> 
 





















































  Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch 
  Introduced: June 15, 2020 
 

ORDINANCE 20-13 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA AMENDING 3 
TITLE 2, ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL, SECTION 2.36.400 4 

HOLIDAYS 5 

 6 

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing 7 
requirement; and 8 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code  personnel code should be amended 9 
as necessary to better meet the needs to conform to the requirements of the City and to 10 
clarify any ambiguities questionable areas. 11 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED by the City Council of the City of North Pole: 12 

Section 1.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 13 

Section 2.  Amend Title Chapter 2.36 2 of the North Pole Municipal Code of Ordinances 14 
is amended as follows: 15 

2.36.400 Holidays. 16 

A.    All City employees, excluding temporaries and casuals, shall be entitled to the 17 

holidays listed below with pay. Except as noted in subsection (D) of this section, full-18 

time employees shall receive regular straight time compensation commensurate with the 19 

number of hours they are regularly scheduled to work; part-time employees shall be paid 20 

straight time compensation in proportion to the number of hours regularly scheduled to 21 

work. Any hours worked on a holiday will be paid at holiday rate of pay (double time). 22 

  Dates Observed  
  Shift Workers   Non-Shift Workers 

1. News Year’s Day Jan 1st Jan 1st or refer to NPMC 2.36.400(B) 

2. Martin Luther King, Jr. 
Day 

3rd Mon in Jan 3rd Mon in Jan 

3. President’s Day 3rd Mon in Feb 3rd Mon in Feb 

4. Memorial Day Last Mon in May Last Mon in May 

5. Independence Day July 4th Jul 4th or refer to NPMC 2.36.400(B) 

6. Labor Day 1st Mon in Sept 1st Mon in Sept 

7. Personal Holiday     

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole02/NorthPole0236.html#2.36.400
https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole02/NorthPole0236.html#2.36.400


  Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch 
  Introduced: June 15, 2020 
 

  Dates Observed  
  Shift Workers   Non-Shift Workers 

8. Veterans Day Nov 11th Nov 11th 

9. Thanksgiving Day 4th Thurs in Nov 4th Thurs in Nov 

10. Christmas Day Dec 25th Dec 25 or refer to NPMC 2.36.400(B) 

B.    If any such holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be given as a 23 

holiday. If any such holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be given as a 24 

holiday. This provision applies to administrative personnel only. This provision does not 25 

apply to shift duty. 26 

C.    The day a holiday is observed may be adjusted by Chief Executive to conform with 27 

holiday dates observed by the State or Federal government. 28 

D.    A shift All other employees whose regular day off falls on a City holiday shall 29 

accrue an additional eight hours of  leave commensurate with the number of hours they 30 

are regularly scheduled to work. 31 

E.    Holidays which occur during a properly approved leave shall not be charged leave 32 

time. (Ord. 00-09 § 2, 2000; Ord. 98-12 § 2, 1998) 33 

F.    When a holiday falls on an employee’s regular day off, the next working day shall be 34 

considered a holiday for pay purposes. In such cases, the holidays stipulated in subsection 35 

(A) of this section shall be considered a regular workday. (Ord. 00-09 § 2, 2000; Ord. 98-36 

12 § 2, 1998) 37 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon passage. 38 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 39 

Council this __________ day of __________, 2020. 40 

       ______________________________ 41 

       Michael W. Welch, Mayor 42 

ATTEST: 43 

 44 

____________________________________ 45 

                                   , City Clerk 46 

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole02/NorthPole0236.html#2.36.400


  Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch 
  Introduced: June 15, 2020 
 

 47 PASSED 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Welch 
Introduced: June 15, 2020 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
RESOLUTION 20-06 2 

 3 
A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL TO ACCEPT CORONAVIRUS 4 

RELIEF FUNDS FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA 5 
 6 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole has been notified by the State of Alaska, Department of Commerce, 7 
Community, and Economic Development, Division of Community and Regional Affairs, that the City of 8 
North Pole has been allocated Coronavirus Relief Funds through the Federal CARES Act; and 9 
 10 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole has been allocated Coronavirus Relief Funds in the amount of 11 
$4,063,980.00 for necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 12 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID – 19); and 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole plans to recover allowable expenditures and to provide funds to local 15 
businesses and individuals within the City through partnerships with local financial institutions and 16 
organizations.  17 
 18 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 19 
execute any and all documents required for accepting Coronavirus Relief Funds on behalf of the City.  20 
 21 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the City Council of the City of North Pole, 22 
Alaska this __________ day of __________, 2020. 23 

 24 
       ________________________________ 25 

Michael W. Welch, Mayor 26 
 27 
ATTEST: 28 
 29 
_________________________________ 30 
Aaron M. Rhoades, Acting North Pole 31 
City Clerk 32 

 33 

PASSED 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 



        City of North Pole, Alaska 
 

   Fiscal Note Year: 

    
Accompanying Ordinance/Resolution: 
 
Originator / sponsor: 
 
Date:      
 
Does the Ordinance or Resolution have a fiscal impact? yes  no 

 

FUND Account Description Account # Debit  Credit  
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
 
Summary: (Brief description of proposed alterations as defined by accompanying 
ordinance or resolution.  Where did the money come from and how will it be used).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By:________________________________Date:__________________ 
 
Finance Approval: ___________________________Date:__________________ 
 
NOTE- Fiscal notes attached to an ordinance are considered amendments to the budget and do 
not require an additional approval for insertion into the budget document.  



 

Memo 
To: City Council 
From: Bill Butler 
Date: June 9, 2020 
Subject: Request to use a Request for Proposal approach to solicit construction contractor for 

the Old Water Treatment Plant Remodel Project 

Recommendation: 
 
Approve the request to use a Request for Proposal approach to solicit construction contractor for the 
Old Water Treatment Plant Remodel Project. 
 
Background 
 
The City has a history of using Invitations to Bid (ITB) to solicit construction contractors and 
Requests for Proposals (RFP) to solicit professional services—things like an engineer or auditor. The 
Municipal Code requires the City Council authorize the use of a RFP versus an ITB when soliciting 
non-professional services contractors. (See attached relevant section of Municipal Code). The 
difference between an ITB versus a RFP to select a contractor is an ITB bases selection based upon 
the lowest cost responsive bidder. Selection of a contractor using a RFP is based upon a variety 
relevant factors that may include price.  
 
Using lowest cost as the sole factor to select a construction contractor does not always guarantee the 
best value for the City. By including factors in addition to cost, the City has the opportunity to select 
the contractor that represents the best value. In this case, the project will not be based upon 100% 
design documents. The intention of providing the contractor with less than 100% design documents is 
to work cooperatively with the contractor to modify the design and construction materials that will 
produce a better-quality product. The knowledge of a well-qualified and experienced contractor can 
benefit the project. 
 
The initial criteria the Utility proposes to include in the RFP for soliciting a construction contractor 
include the following: 

• Contractor experience on similar projects (15%) 
• References (10%) 
• Project approach (5%) 
• Cost (70%) 

 
The RFP will weight each of the factors as a basis for selecting a construction contractor. The proposal 
review team will include Director of City Services, designer (North Star Engineering and Inspections)  



 

 
Attached is the preliminary draft of the RFP that the City would use to solicit construction contractors 
for the Old Water Treatment Plant Remodel Project.  
  



 

4.16.040 Competitive sealed bidding. 
B.    Competitive Sealed Proposals. 

1.    When the City Council determines that the use of competitive sealed bidding is either 
not practicable or not advantageous to the City, a contract may be entered into by use of the 
competitive sealed proposals method. 
2.    Proposals shall be solicited through a request for proposals. 
3.    Adequate public notice of the request for proposals shall be given including 
publication in a newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen days prior to the deadline 
for proposals. 
4.    No proposals shall be handled so as to permit disclosure of the identity of any offeror 
or the contents of any proposal to competing offers during the process of negotiation. The 
proposals shall be open for public inspection only after contract award by the City Council. 
5.    The request for proposals shall state the relative importance of price and other 
evaluation factors. 
6.    Award shall be made to the responsible offeror whose proposal is determined in 
writing to be the most advantageous to the City taking into consideration price and the 
evaluation factors set forth in the request for proposals. No other factors or criteria shall be 
used in the evaluation. The contract file shall contain the basis on which the award is made. 

  



 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

 

 

 
 

For Design‐Build 
Old Water Treatment Plant Office Remodel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date of Issue: Month 
Closing Date and Time: Date & Time 

  



 

1.0 GENERAL 
The City of North Pole is wishing to remodel the office space at the Old Water Treatment plant and 
to transform the reservoir into office space. Project will proceed as a Design‐Build project. 

Interested firms should carefully examine the entire Request for Proposal (RFP) and any addenda 
thereto, and all related materials and data referenced in the RFP. Firms are required to visit the site 
and encouraged to fully inform themselves of existing conditions and limitations. 

Registration 
Each firm must register to be eligible to submit a proposal and receive addenda. To register, contact 
Bill Butler at (907) 488‐8953 or by email at: bbutler@northpolealaska.org. Include your firm name, 
address, telephone, name and email address of contact person. 

To be eligible, the firm providing the City services shall include a copy of current State of Alaska 
business license and a copy of current State of Alaska contractor’s license. 

Submittal Deadline 
To be considered, a complete proposal package in the format requested must be received by mail or 
hand‐ delivered to North Pole City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, AK 99705, Attention: 
City Clerk, by 2:00 p.m. local time, Date. Proposals received after this deadline will not be accepted 
and will be returned unopened. Faxed or e‐mailed copies will not be accepted. 

Questions of RFP Documents 
Firms requiring interpretation or correction of the RFP documents shall provide questions in writing 
by email to Bill Butler (bbutler@northpolealaska.org). Interpretations, corrections and changes to 
the RFP documents shall be made by written addendum and sent to all registered firms. 

Site visit will be conducted: 2:00 p.m. local time, DATE.  

Deadline for questions is 5:00 p.m. local time, DATE. All Addendum will be issues by 
DATE. 
 

The City of North Pole assumes no responsibility for any interpretation or representations made by 
any of its employees or agents unless interpretations or representations are incorporated in a written 
amendment to the RFP. 

Record Documents 
Limited electronic record documents exist for the Old Water Treatment Planr facilities. Firms are 
required to confirm existing conditions. 

2.0  INSTRUCTIONS TO FIRMS 

Each submittal must have a cover letter signed by the Consultant’s official authorized to represent 
the company and acknowledging any amendments to this RFP. The proposal shall consist of firms 
qualifications, project approach, proposed project schedule, and concept. The proposal shall not 
exceed 10 pages, not including cover, cover letter, tabs, business licenses, and professional licenses. 
Pages shall be numbered. One page is defined as one side of a standard 8 ½” x 11” sheet of paper, 
10 point font type minimum. 11” x 17” drawings are acceptable, folded into package. 

mailto:bbutler@northpolealaska.org.


 

Submit three bound copies and one electronic copy on CD or thumb drive. Each bound copy shall 
be identical. Place the submissions in a sealed envelope or box. Clearly label the envelope with the 
respondent’s name, and marked “Proposal Old Water Treatment Plant Office Remodel, Attention: 
City Clerk”. 

3.0 PROJECT INFORMATION 

Introduction 

The City of North Pole is soliciting proposals for construction services for the remodel of the North 
Pole Old Water Treatment Plant at 117th 5th Avenue in North Pole, Alaska. The construction project 
involves selective demolition and remodel of portions of the existing building to accomplish code 
corrections, correct selected deficiencies as listed in the attached North Star Engineering & 
Inspection report, reduce maintenance and utility costs, improve user comfort and use of facility.  

A concept design was developed in June 2020 to define the scope of the renovation project. The 
project is funded through the City of North Pole. The building will not be occupied during 
construction. 

The intent of this solicitation is to enter into a professional services agreement with the most qualified 
Firm to construct the remodel of the Old Water Treatment Plant. 

Must comply with Davis‐Bacon wages and submit certified payrolls to the City in addition to the 
State.  

Deadline for contract completion (including all invoicing) is 31, December 2020. Liquidated 
damages will be assessed at $100/day for any schedule extensions. 

Building Program 
Please reference attachment one: Concept Design North Pole Old Water Treatment Plant developed 
by North Star Engineering and Inspection. This report includes technical narratives for…The firm 
is encouraged to suggest alternative layouts for efficiency, cost reduction etc., however modifications 
to this layout may not be approved by the City of North Pole. 

Notice to Award is intended to be July ##. 

4.0 CODE REQUIREMENTS 
The City of North Pole has adopted the 2015 IBC, 2015 IMC, 2015 UPC, 2015 IFC and the 2015 
NEC, with amendments. The State of Alaska Department of Public Safety, Fire Marshal, retains 
plan review authority over this project should they choose to exercise this authority. 

5.0 TECHNICAL AND PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
The proposal shall address the following evaluation factors which will be scored by the Selection 
Committee. 

Project Team Experience 
The Firm shall describe firm experience for up to three projects completed within the last five years 
of a similar size, scope and location. Provide the following information for each project: 



 

1. Project title, location and brief description including the building use and contracting 
method. 

2. Project data including start and completion dates, total project cost (with brief 
explanation of the services that were included in the cost); square footage and 
construction type (wood, steel, structural panels, etc.); any known modification costs 
that occurred in either the design or construction phases with an explanation of the 
reason for the cost change. 

3. Name and contact information (phone and email) for clients in sited projects 
Project Approach 
The Consultant shall provide a narrative that addresses the following: 

1. Quality Assurance/Quality Control Plan: Describe your team’s approach to quality 
control and quality assurance throughout the project. 

6.0 STANDARD CONTRACT INFORMATION 
The form of agreement to be executed prior to issuance of Notice to Proceed shall be the North 
Pole Utility standard agreement between Owner and the contractor (see attached). 

Insurance Requirements 
The minimum requirements for insurance on the project are listed in Attachment 4. 

Bid Bond  
A Bid Bond consisting of 10% of the base bid is required. Submit bond in the form of a bid bond, 
certified check or cashier’s check and any power of attorney required. The bond must be good for 
60 days. 

7.0 SELECTION PROCESS 
The selection process consists of a Request for Proposals (RFP) process in which Firm submits a 
proposal. The technical proposal consists of qualifications, project approach, proposed project 
schedule, and cost as described in section 5.0 Proposal Requirements. 

Proposals received from qualified teams will be reviewed and scored by City of North Pole Selection 
Committee established for this particular project. Interviews may be required at the discretion of 
City of North Pole. City of North Pole intends to negotiate a contract with the firm the Selection 
Committee solely determines will provide the best overall value and expertise on this project. 
Following the contract negotiation, City of North Pole will issue an Intent to Award letter to all 
proposal submitters. Upon contract award, the successful proposal will be made available to public. 

Technical Proposal Evaluation Criteria 
The Selection Committee will review technical proposal submissions utilizing the following 
evaluation criteria. Each criterion is followed by its relative weight. The maximum number of points 
used to score the technical proposals is 100. Proposals will be ranked in order of the highest 
numerical score first. The Selection Committee shall select as many of the top ranked Consultants as 
it deems necessary for inclusion within the negotiating list. 

1. Firm experience with similar projects of similar size, scope and location completed 
within budget. (15 pts) 

2. References (contact name and information) for projects listed in 1 above. (10 points) 
3. Project Approach and ability to manage the project successfully, methodology and 



 

approach your company will take to fulfill all demands of the RFP Scope of Work. (5 
points) 

4. Cost: full points will be awarded to lowest bidder, fraction of points will be awarded to 
others, in order of ranking: Lowest cost is awarded the full points, then the 2nd lowest is 
awarded a fraction of the points by dividing the lowest cost by that proposers cost and 
multiplying it by the maximum points allowed. Then similarly so for the 3rd lowest 
bidder, etc. (70 pts) 

 
8.0 NOTICE OF AWARD 
Within 10 business days of Notice of Award the selected bidder will be required to submit: 

1. Performance Bond (100% of Contract) 
2. Labor & Material Payment Bond (100% of Contract) 
3. The Contractor's Certificates of Insurance 
4. City of North Pole Business License for Contractor and all  Subcontractors 
5. Signed Agreement 

9.0 OTHER 
Any costs incurred in responding to this request are at the Firm’s sole risk and will not be reimbursed 
by City of North Pole. This RFP does not in any way commit City of North Pole to reimburse 
recipients of this RFP for any of the costs of preparing and submitting a proposal for these services. 
Furthermore, this RFP does not obligate City of North Pole to accept or contract for any services 
expressed or implied. 

Clarification, modification, rejection of RFP. City of North Pole reserves the right to: (1) Modify or 
otherwise alter any or all of the requirements herein. In the event of any modifications, all selected 
respondents will be given an equal opportunity to modify their proposals in the specific areas that 
are requested. (2) Reject any proposal not adhering to any and all requirements set forth in this RFP. 
(3) Reject any or all responses received. City of North Pole reserves the right to terminate this RFP 
at any time. 

City of North Pole shall provide for the administrative review of a complaint filed by an aggrieved 
Consultant which allows the Consultant to file a proposal protest, within 10 days after notice is 
provided of intent to award the contract, requesting a hearing for a determination and award of the 
contract. City of North Pole shall provide notice to all parties submitting proposals of the filing of 
the proposal protest. A protest shall be deemed to include only the documents timely delivered 
pursuant to this section. It must clearly state all of the grounds for the protest and must include all 
arguments and evidence in support of the protest. City of North Pole may investigate as it deems 
appropriate in reviewing the protest, and will issue a written response to the protest. City of North 
Pole may proceed with the contract award, execution, and performance while a protest is pending. 

City of North Pole reserves the right to waive informalities, and to make a selection as deemed in 
its own best interest. City of North Pole reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals which 
they deem to be not in the best interests City of North Pole and to proceed with the next Consultant 
or to utilize an entirely different process. 



 

All proposals and other materials become the property of City of North Pole and may be returned 
only at the option of City of North Pole. 

In the event it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP, addenda will be provided to any 
entity that was provided the basic RFP package. City of North Pole reserves the right to postpone 
the date and time for receipt of proposals at any time prior to the time announced. Responses to 
questions prior to submittal of proposals must be in writing. Written answers will be provided to all 
Consultants. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Design documents 
2. Insurance Requirements 
3. Bid form 
4. Standard Utility Contract 

 


	AG 06-15-2020
	North Pole Council Chambers
	6. Communications from the Mayor
	10. Citizens Comments (Limited to five (5) minutes per Citizen)
	13. Executive Session to Discuss Personnel Matters Regarding City Clerk
	14. Council Comments


	Min 06-01-2020
	a. Eielson Air Force Base Economic Impact Statement.
	b. Explore Fairbanks request for CARES Act funds.
	c. Meeting with FNSB Mayor Ward regarding CARES Act.
	a. Common Contract Service Provider without abrogating our rights as a political subdivision.
	b. FNSB Assembly meeting June 11th.
	c. Mr. Claus discussed liability matters.
	d. Mr. McGhee indicated he will have questions at the June 15th Council meeting regarding how much participation we might anticipate from businesses and residents under our utilities within the City.
	e. Request for Board members to be on a committee.

	RECONSIDERATION, Request to Approve Borough Ambulance Contract
	Claus - RECONSIDERATION, Request to Approve Borough Ambulance Contract.pdf
	Coon 2 - Request to Approve Borough Ambulance Contract.pdf

	Ord 20-13 Introduced 6-15-20
	Resolution 20-06 Accepting Coronavirus Funds
	Fiscal Note for Resolution 20-06 
	Use RFP Old WTP remodel - Bill Butler request
	1.0 GENERAL
	Registration
	Submittal Deadline
	Questions of RFP Documents
	Record Documents
	3.0 PROJECT INFORMATION Introduction
	Building Program
	4.0 CODE REQUIREMENTS
	5.0 TECHNICAL AND PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS
	Project Team Experience
	Project Approach
	6.0 STANDARD CONTRACT INFORMATION
	Insurance Requirements
	Bid Bond
	7.0 SELECTION PROCESS
	Technical Proposal Evaluation Criteria
	8.0 NOTICE OF AWARD
	9.0 OTHER


	Year: 2020
	Res-Ord: Resolution 20-06
	Sponsor:  Mayor Welch
	Date: June 10, 2020
	Yes: Yes
	No: Off
	FUNDRow1: 01- Gen
	Account DescriptionRow1: COVID 19 Relief Revenue
	Account Row1: 01-00-9-919
	DebitRow1: 4,063,980
	CreditRow1: 
	FUNDRow2: 01- Gen
	Account DescriptionRow2: COVID 19 Expenditures
	Account Row2: 01-51-9-919
	DebitRow2: 
	CreditRow2: 4,063,980
	FUNDRow3: 
	Account DescriptionRow3: 
	Account Row3: 
	DebitRow3: 
	CreditRow3: 
	FUNDRow4: 
	Account DescriptionRow4: 
	Account Row4: 
	DebitRow4: 
	CreditRow4: 
	FUNDRow5: 
	Account DescriptionRow5: 
	Account Row5: 
	DebitRow5: 
	CreditRow5: 
	FUNDRow6: 
	Account DescriptionRow6: 
	Account Row6: 
	DebitRow6: 
	CreditRow6: 
	FUNDRow7: 
	Account DescriptionRow7: 
	Account Row7: 
	DebitRow7: 
	CreditRow7: 
	FUNDRow8: 
	Account DescriptionRow8: 
	Account Row8: 
	DebitRow8: 
	CreditRow8: 
	FUNDRow9: 
	Account DescriptionRow9: 
	Account Row9: 
	DebitRow9: 
	CreditRow9: 
	Text6:    
	Prepared By: Tricia Fogarty
	Date_2: June 10, 2020
	Finance Approval: Tricia Fogarty
	Date_3: June 10, 2020


